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EMPLOYMENT AGENCY/BUSINESS REGULATIONS
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS FOR WORK-SEEKERS

The questions and answers that follow are some of those which are most often asked. If
the answers you need are not here, you can contact the Labour Relations Agency. The
contact details of the organisations mentioned throughout this guide and a number of
organisations which you may find useful are listed at the back of this booklet under
USEFUL CONTACTS.

Can an agency charge me for work-finding services or for
registering with them?

A fundamental principle of the employment agencies legislation is that work-seekers
should not be charged for work-finding services. However, there are some exceptions to
this i.e. the entertainment and modelling sectors e.g. actors, models or sports persons.
Where an agency can charge a fee, is there a limit on how
much that fee can be?

No. It is up to the work-seeker and the employment agency to agree the limit of any fees
to be charged. However, normally the fee will:

e be based on the earnings provided by any work the agency has found the
work-seeker; or

e relate directly to the costs for the provision or production of certain types of
work-finding publications, e.g. acting or modelling portfolios.

It is important that work-seekers clearly establish the nature of the service they are
paying for and be aware that agencies are obligated to provide these details.

Can | register with more than one agency?
Yes. You may register with as many agencies as you wish.

Your detailed guidance refers to employment agencies (EAs)
and employment businesses (EBs) — what is the difference?

An EA will introduce you to hirers that you are going to work for permanently (or work for
on a fixed or short-term contract). With this arrangement, your contract of employment
will be with the hirer and not with the agency. An EB will place you with hirers to work but
your contractual relationship is with the EB and it is the EB that is responsible for paying
you.
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I know the difference between an employment agency (EA) and
an employment business (EB). Does it make any practical
difference to me?

Yes. If your contract is with an EB, they must pay you even if they have not been paid by
the hirer themselves. If your contract is on an EA basis, your pay will be on a salary basis
paid by the hirer.

How can | tell if an agency is an employment agency or an
employment business?

Most agencies will operate in both ways. You need to be sure what you are asking them
to do for you i.e. find you permanent or temporary work and be sure you understand the
contract i.e. the terms and conditions that they ask you to sign.

What are my current rights as an agency worker?

Agency workers are protected under a range of legislative measures, including race and
gender equality, fair employment, disability discrimination and health and safety laws.
They also have rights regarding working time, making a protected disclosure, right for
part-time workers not to be treated less favourably than full-time workers, National
Minimum Wage, unlawful deductions from wages, right to be accompanied at disciplinary
and grievance hearings, right to belong or not to belong to a trade union, right not to
suffer deductions of unauthorised union subscriptions and protection from detriment in
relation to exercising their statutory rights. Agency workers may also have rights under
working parents’ legislation, although this will depend on the description of your National
Insurance contributions.

| am unsure about the terms and conditions being offered by
an employment agency/business. What should | do?

An employment agency/business must agree terms and conditions with you before it
provides you with work-finding services. The terms and conditions must include
information on whether the firm providing work-finding services is acting as an EA or an
EB in relation to the work-seeker and the type of work that the EA or EB will seek to find
for the work-seeker. The terms and conditions of EBs should also include, among other
matters, an undertaking that the EB will pay the work-seeker in respect of work done by
him, and information on notice periods, rates of remuneration, intervals of remuneration
and holiday entitlement. You should only sign up to the terms and conditions once you
fully understand what it is you are committing yourself to. If you have any doubts you
should delay signing any documents until you have sought further advice from another
source e.g. a Citizens Advice Bureau.
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Can an employment agency or employment business request
confirmation from me of my identity and the qualifications that
| have obtained?

The legislation requires all work-seekers to provide evidence that they are who they say
they are. This can be done by providing your passport, driver’s licence or National ID Card
(if you are from a country which issues one). You will also need to provide evidence that
you have obtained the necessary experience, training and/or qualifications which the
employer considers necessary, or which are required by law or by any professional body,
to work in the position to be filled.

Can an employment agency forward my CV/details to an
employer without my permission?

No. An agency must obtain your permission to forward your details to prospective
employers wishing to consider you for the position that they seek to fill.

The agency says | am not allowed to work for the hirer with
whom | was placed for several months after | leave them. Is
this true?

No. The legislation forbids an agency from placing any restrictions on you working directly

for the hirer whom you previously worked for. However, the agency could prevent you being
supplied to the hirer by another agency.

Am | entitled to the National Minimum Wage (NMW)?

Yes. Employees must be paid the National Minimum Wage, although there are some
variations to the limits — please see HM Revenue and Customs’ NMW guidance. If you
are not receiving the minimum wage you can complain to HM Revenue and Customs,
which enforces the legislation.

Are there limits on the number of hours | can work?

Yes. Largely for health and safety reasons legislation governing working time provides
that workers cannot be forced to work for more than 48 hours per week on average,
although they can choose to opt-out of this protection. The 48-hour limit applies to the
worker and therefore must include all the hours they work (even when there is more than
one employer involved). More information on the 48-hour per week limit and the opt-out
clause are available from the Department for Employment and Learning’s Working Time
Regulations guidance.

My agency refuses to pay me holiday pay. Who should I talk to?

You can get advice on problems concerning holiday pay from the Labour Relations Agency.

_ °



My agency says | am not entitled to paid bank holidays. Is this
correct?

Yes. There is no statutory requirement for any worker to receive paid bank holidays. The
Working Time Regulations guidance has more information on this subject.

Are agency workers entitled to Statutory Sick Pay?

HM Revenue and Customs offers this advice:

"There are various types of agency workers who may be regarded as employees for
Statutory Sick Pay purposes. If a work-seeker is treated as an employee for National
Insurance contribution purposes, they will also be treated as an employee for Statutory
Sick Pay purposes”.

The Social Security Agency also has guidance on this issue.

Am | required to use any additional services provided by an
agency?

No. An employment agency or business cannot require the work-seeker to use any other
service it may provide (e.g. accommodation, training or photography, or hiring or buying
goods) as a condition for providing work-finding services to that work-seeker.

| use additional services provided by an agency. Can | withdraw
from these?

Yes. You can withdraw, without suffering any detriment, from any other services provided
by an agency following a short notice period (five working days for all services except
accommodation where there is a notice period of 10 working days). Your employment
agency or employment business must have provided you with a written statement of your
right to withdraw from additional services before they first provide you with that service.

What is a ‘temp to perm’ fee?

The agency's contract with the hirer for supplying temporary workers may contain what is
known in the industry as a ‘temp to perm’ fee. This means that if the hirer wants to take
you on permanently straight away, they may need to pay an additional fee to the agency.




I am thinking of registering with a modelling or entertainment
agency. What legal protections do | have?

You will be protected in the same way as other agency workers are. You should also be
aware that agencies within the modelling/entertainment sectors are allowed to charge
you fees for finding work if the fee —

(i) is paid by you from earnings relating to work found by that agency; and/or

(i) relates to the agency including your details in a publication, where that
publication is designed either to find you work in any of the listed occupations,
or to provide hirers with details about you.

Any agency that charges a fee for work-finding services must include details of any fee
payable in the terms and conditions it agrees with the work-seeker.

Agencies cannot charge these fees on the day of, or during, a casting session or
audition, or for seven days after you enter into a contract with an agency. You also have a
seven-day cooling off period during which you can cancel or withdraw from any contract to
include your details in a publication, without suffering any detriment or penalty. This
cooling off period applies whether you signed the contract at a casting session or
approached the agency direct.



FURTHER INFORMATION FOR MIGRANT WORKERS

Can an employment agency or business retain my passport?

No. An employment agency or business is allowed to photocopy your passport to confirm
your identity, but any official documents must be returned to you. Should anyone take
your passport or any other identification documents and refuse to give them back, you
can report them to the Police Service of Northern Ireland, who will be able to investigate.
There are, however, certain checks, including checks on identity, which the employment
agency or business must carry out in order to comply with the law. Employment
businesses must also ensure that work-seekers are entitled to work in the UK. The UK
Border Agency has further guidance on this issue.

How do | obtain a National Insurance Number?

You should contact your local Social Security Agency or Jobs & Benefits office for further
information on how to obtain a National Insurance Number.

Where can | get help to find accommodation?

For social housing (provided for rent by the public sector or a Housing Association) you
should contact the Northern Ireland Housing Executive. For private rental you should
contact estate agencies in your local area.

Where can | get help with learning the English language?

You can contact your local Further Education College or your local Jobs & Benefits office
or JobCentre for details on where English classes are being held in your local area.




What should I do if | have a complaint about an employment
agency or business?

You can complete our complaints form online or write to us at the following address:-
Department for Employment and Learning

Employment Relations Policy and Legislation Branch
Room 203

Adelaide House

39-49 Adelaide Street

BELFAST

BT2 8FD

Telephone: 028 9025 7493

Employment Agency Helpline: 028 9025 7554
E-mail: ea.inspectors@delni.gov.uk

Website: www.delni.gov.uk

Further detailed guidance on the requirements of the legislation is available from the
Department for Employment and Learning’s employment agency website at:

http://www.delni.gov.uk/index/er/employment-agency-and-business-regulations-2.htm

Upon request, consideration may be given to making this guide available in
alternative formats and in other languages for people who are not proficient in
English. All requests/comments should be sent to the Department for Employment
and Learning at the above address.

Please note that this booklet gives general guidance only and should not be
regarded as a complete or authoritative statement of the law. Authoritative
interpretations of the law can only be given by the courts. Readers should be alert

to the possibility of developments in case law that may affect the rights described.



USEFUL CONTACTS

Citizens Advice Bureau
Regional Office

46 Donegall Pass

BELFAST

BT7 1BS

Tel: 028 9050 3000
Website: www.citizensadvice.co.uk

Department for Business
Enterprise and Regulatory

Reform
Response Centre
1 Victoria Street
LONDON

SW1H OET

Tel: 020 7215 5000
Website: www.berr.gov.uk

Department for Employment

and Learning
Employment Relations Policy
and Legislation Branch
Adelaide House

39-49 Adelaide Street
BELFAST

BT2 8FD

Tel: 028 9025 7580
Website: www.delni.gov.uk

Equality Commission
Equality House

7-9 Shaftesbury Square
BELFAST

BT2 7DP

Tel: 028 9050 0600
Website: www.equalityni.org

Health & Safety Executive

for NI
83 Ladas Drive
BELFAST
BT6 9FR

Tel: 0800 0320 121
Website: www.hseni.gov.uk

HM Revenue and Customs
National Minimum Wage
Enquiries

Freepost PHQ1

NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE
NE98 17H

Tel: 0845 6000 678
NI Helpline: 0845 6500 207
Website: www.hmrc.gov.uk

Labour Relations Agency

Head Office

2-8 Gordon Street
BELFAST

BT1 2LG

Tel: 028 9032 1442
Website: www.Ira.org.uk

Labour Relations Agency
Regional Office

1-3 Guildhall Street
LONDONDERRY

BT48 6BJ

Tel: 028 7126 9639

Website: www.Ira.org.uk



Northern Ireland Housing

Executive

Head Office

The Housing Centre
2 Adelaide Street
BELFAST

BT2 8PB

Tel: 028 9024 0588
Website: www.nihe.gov.uk

Office of the Industrial
Tribunals and the Fair

Employment Tribunal
Killymeal House

2 Cromac Quay

Ormeau Road

BELFAST

BT7 2JD

Tel: 028 9032 7666
Website:
www.employmenttribunalsni.gov.uk

Police Service of Northern

Ireland
Headquarters Brooklyn
65 Knock Road
BELFAST

BT5 6LE

Tel: 0845 6008 000
Website: www.psni.police.uk

Social Security Agency
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road

BELFAST

BT7 2JB

Tel: 028 9082 9000
Website: www.dsdni.gov.uk

UK Border Agency
Lunar House

40 Wellesley Road
Croydon

SURREY

CR9 2BY

Tel: 0870 606 7766

Website: www.ukba.homeoffice.gov.uk



USEFUL BOOKLETS

The Department has produced the following guidance material which provides further
useful advice:

e Conduct of Employment Agencies and Employment Businesses Regulations (NI)
2005 - A detailed guide

e Employment Agency/Business Regulations — Frequently asked questions for
agencies

e Employment Rights booklet series

e Fixed-term work: A guide to the regulations
e Parttime work: The law and best practice
e Public Interest Disclosure (NI) Order

e Working Time Regulations — A detailed guide

FURTHER GUIDANCE:

All the above guidance plus a range of further guidance is available on our website or by
contacting:-

Employment Relations Policy and Legislation Branch
Department for Employment and Learning

Room 203

Adelaide House

39/49 Adelaide Street

Belfast

BT2 8FD

General enquiries:

Tel: 028 9025 7580

Fax: 028 9025 7555

Text-phone: 028 9025 7576

E-mail: employment.rights@delni.gov.uk
Website: www.delni.gov.uk/er

Employment Agency Inspector enquiries:
Tel: 028 9025 7554

E-mail: ea.inspectors@delni.gov.uk
Website: www.delni.gov.uk/er




13









people:skills:jobs:

THE DEPARTMENT:
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Further information:

telephone: 028 9025 7580

e-mail: employment.rights@delni.gov.uk
website: www.delni.gov.uk




